## MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD IN COMMITTEE ROOMS 1/2/3 - CIVIC OFFICES ANGEL STREET BRIDGEND CF31 4WB ON TUESDAY, 28 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 2.30 PM

## Present

### Councillor HJ David – Chairperson

CE Smith RE Young	PJ White	HM Williams	D Patel
Apologies for Absence	<u>e</u>		

Officers:

Randal Hemingway	Head of Finance & Section 151 Officer
Darren Mepham	Chief Executive
Mark Shephard	Corporate Director - Communities
Andrew Jolley	Corporate Director Operational & Partnership Services
Mark Galvin	Senior Democratic Services Officer - Committees
Lindsay Harvey	Corporate Director Education and Family Support
Jackie Davies	Head of Adult Social Care
Lynne Berry	Partnership and Integration Manager
Martin Ridgeway	
Mark Shephard Andrew Jolley Mark Galvin Lindsay Harvey Jackie Davies Lynne Berry	Corporate Director - Communities Corporate Director Operational & Partnership Services Senior Democratic Services Officer - Committees Corporate Director Education and Family Support Head of Adult Social Care

### 104. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from the Corporate Director – Social Services and Wellbeing

### 105. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

<u>RESOLVED:</u> (1) The following Officers declared an interest in Agenda Item 4 and left the meeting whilst this report was being considered:-

- A. Jolley
- M. Shephard
- L. Harvey
- J. Davies
- R. Hemingway

(2) Councillor RE Young declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 18, as a local authority appointed School Governor.

### 106. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That the Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet dated 31 October 2017, be approved as a true and accurate. record.

## 107. JNC PAY STRUCTURE

The Chief Executive presented a report that sought Cabinet approval to recommend to Council the implementation of a new approach to senior management pay.

He explained that the Authority's pay band structure currently, had large gaps between the senior management tiers, most notably a £32k gap between Group Managers and Heads of Service, a £25k gap between Heads of Service and Directors, and a £27k gap between Directors and the Chief Executive.

The intention explained the Chief Executive, subject to consultation, was to have the proposed new pay structure in place by the end of the financial year.

The Chief Executive confirmed that there were no financial implications arising from the report's recommendations, though it was intended that the proposed changes could facilitate a reduction in the overall cost of senior manager salaries by up to £500k over the next 2 years.

A Member asked if there had been any consultation carried out on the proposals, and also if a benchmarking exercise had been conducted with neighbouring authorities in order to ascertain what JNC Pat Structure they adopted.

The Chief Executive stated that all local authorities had variations in their pay structures for JNC staff, and that there was no one to consult with in respect of the proposals. However, he advised that there would be some effect upon terms and conditions of posts affected in terms of evaluating the existing roles of these.

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That Cabinet approved for submission to Council the new JNC pay structure with an effective date of 1 April 2018.

## 108. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2018-19 TO 2021-22

The Section 151 Officer presented a report, the purpose of which was to present Cabinet with the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-19 to 2021-22.

He referred to the background of the report, and pointed out to Cabinet that the process for the Budget this year had followed the same principle of last year.

The report commenced with a Budget Narrative and then outlined the current situation and the financial context of the Council's MTFS. He reminded Members that the Welsh Government had announced its draft Budget for 2018-19 on 3 October last, with the most significant headline of this, being that there would be an additional £230m in 2018-19 and £220m in 2019-20 for the Welsh NHS. The Cabinet Secretary had highlighted the risk to the Welsh Government of the UK Government's £3.5 billion of unallocated cuts for 2019-20, which could result in a further cut of up to £173m to the Welsh budget dependent upon where the unallocated cuts fall.

The Section 151 Officer then advised that Councils received their provisional settlements from Welsh Government on 10 October. The headline figure is a reduction of £19 million, or 0.5%, across Wales and, for Bridgend, a reduction of 0.6% in Aggregate External Finance (AEF), or £1.16 million. However when adjustments are made for new responsibilities in respect of homelessness prevention (£236,000 for Bridgend), the true impact for Bridgend is estimated to be a like-for-like reduction of £1.396 million or -0.73%. Welsh Government has reported that the settlement also includes an additional £42 million across Wales in recognition of social services pressures and £62 million in respect of school funding, but these amounts, which are not

ring-fenced or notified at individual authority level, are already included in the figures above. The settlement also includes £1.8 million floor funding to ensure that no authority has to manage with a reduction of more than 1% to its Revenue Support Grant next year.

The provisional settlement compares favourably to the -3.2% "most likely" assumption that is contained within the Council's original MTFS for 2018-19 and is better even than the "best" case scenario assumption of -1.5%.

He then highlighted that unlike previous years, Welsh Government had provided an indication of funding levels for 2019-20, being a further budget reduction in 2019-20 of 1.5%.

Paragraph 4.8 then referred to specific grants, and the Section 151 Officer stated that though the full picture on these was as of yet unclear, there would be a deficit compared to previous years.

The report then identified that there was highly likely that there would be a Council Tax increase of 4.2% for 2018-19, with an assumed annual increase 0f 4.5% for the period of 2019-2022.

Paragraphs 4.12 to 4.14 of the report then gave information in table format of the Current Year 2017-18 financial performance as at September 2017. This showed that as of this date, there was a net spend of £2.495m, comprising £710,000 net over spend on Directorates and £3.208m net under spend on corporate budgets.

The next section of the report concentrated on the MTFS for the period 2018-19 to 2021-22, with the Principles of this being detailed in paragraph 4.18 of the report and remaining unchanged.

The 2018-19 AEF figure is a reduction of -0.6% based on the published Provisional Settlement. In the July report to Cabinet on the MTFS, it was stated that the Council would continue to work towards a most likely scenario in its planning assumptions for 2018-22 of an annual reduction in AEF of -3.2% and an assumed increase in Council tax of 4.2% in 2018-19 and 4.5% for each year thereafter, recognising the ongoing uncertainty around our funding in future years. However, as outlined in paragraph 4.7 the Cabinet Secretary has stated that the indicative settlement for 2019-20 is a further reduction of 1.5%. Given this message, and in recognition both of the twin risks around public sector pay (uncertainty around future pay awards and possible equal pay issues driven by the National Living Wage) and elevated inflation, it is proposed that the 2019-22 MTFS assumptions are adjusted to include:

- A most likely annual reduction of -1.5% in AEF, with best and worst case scenarios of -1.0% and -3.0% respectively
- An uplift to the assumed annual provision for pay, prices, demographic and unavoidable pressures for the outer three years of the MTFS

Table 4 in paragraph 4.20 of the report, showed the Council's potential net budget reduction requirement based on the forecast resource envelope, which confirmed that during the current life period of the MTFS, the most likely scenario was that over the 4 years the Council would be required to make savings amounting to £31.914m.

Paragraph 4.22 of the report included Table 5 that showed the current position in respect of addressing this most likely forecast budget reduction. It also reflected that £13m of budget reduction proposals have already been identified over the period of the

MTFS, including the full £6.123m required for 2018-19. The table further showed that the Council still needs to develop proposals to the value of £18.7m and a range of options were under consideration in order to deliver the shortfall. The Section 151 Officer pointed out to Members, that £4.882m in terms of Budget Reduction Proposals for 2018-19 were presently Amber on the RAG status.

He then referred to the Budget Reduction Proposals identified by categorisation, and he was pleased to inform Cabinet that 78% of these had been/were being targeted by making Smarter Use of Resources.

With regard to paragraph 4.28 of the report headed Scrutiny and Challenge, the Section 151 Officer confirmed that a full consultation i.e. 'Shaping Bridgend's Future' was launched in early October and would run until 3 December. The report explained what this would cover and that the results would be collated and presented to Cabinet in December, in order to further inform decisions on the final MTFS.

The Draft Revenue Budget was then broken down by Directorate and Department in table format at paragraph 4.29 of the report, whilst the next section of the report gave a resume on pressures, such as Pay, Prices and Demographics. He explained that National pay increases for public sector workers have been capped at 1% for a number of years, and that over recent months, pay offers to both the police and fire services have both been above 1%, implying, if perhaps not a total abandonment, then at least a relaxation of pay restraint. Whilst no agreement has yet been reached for national pay bargaining, 1% has been assumed in the 2018-19 draft budget. Any increase above this will undoubtedly place additional pressure on Council resources, and may result in further budget reductions if not funded by Welsh Government. Funding for pay increases will be retained centrally until further information is known he added.

He then further added, that price inflation has been allocated to service budgets, where known, and that these would be further reviewed for the final budget and amended where necessary with updated inflation rates. It was likely that this would be a much bigger consideration over the period covering the MTFS.

Paragraph 4.34 of the report then confirmed the budget proposed for Schools, and that for 2018-19 the 1% efficiency target set last year would be lifted due to a better than expected settlement. Also, in recognition of the detrimental impact which the Welsh Government's decision to reduce the Education Improvement Grant is forecast to have, it was recommended that an additional £500k be delegated to school budgets also.

The Section 151 Officer then referred to Appendix A to the report, where information was provided in respect of Budget Pressures, both the type that were unavoidable and discretionary.

He then advised that in order to support service improvement, there were a number of areas which it is proposed to increase in the draft Budget. These represented the conscious choice of members to invest in enhancements, and were outlined in paragraph 4.36 (Table 8) of the report.

In terms of Budget Reduction proposals, £6.123m had been identified from service and corporate budgets, in order to achieve a balanced budget, (Appendix B to the report referred.)

In respect of Corporate Budgets, he explained that it was proposed to implement reductions totalling £2.610m, for temporary relief for unforeseen over spends.

Fees and Charges were referred to in paragraph 4.39 of the report, whilst Council Reserves were as had been reported to Cabinet in October explained the Section 151 Officer.

The next part of the report referred to the Capital Programme and Capital Financing Strategy developed in line with the MTFS principles, which reflect the Welsh Government draft capital settlement for 2018-19, providing general capital funding of  $\pounds 6.328m$ .

Table 10 in paragraph 4.43 of the report, showed the 2017-18 Annual Allocations of Capital Funding, which were in the process of being reviewed for any further opportunities to release capital for new schemes.

The Capital Financing Strategy principles in the next section of the report remained unchanged confirmed the Section 151 Officer.

In respect of Capital Receipts the Council estimated that around £21m could be generated in 2014, and thus far, circa £15.8m had been delivered, with £5.2m to be realised over the next 2 years.

The Section 151 Officer with reference to paragraph 4.49 of the report stated that In recognition of the scale and importance of future capital expenditure requirements, the 2018-19 draft revenue budget includes £500,000 as a recurrent revenue budget to meet the costs of additional unsupported borrowing. In line with prudent accounting practice, the costs of any investments made will be repaid within the life of the particular asset. Whilst the funding has not yet been earmarked for specific investments, it is estimated that the funding will provide between  $\pounds 5 - \pounds 15m$  of capital works, depending upon the type of investments approved by Council.

The Deputy Leader thanked the Finance team for preparing the report and emphasised that the document was a draft and still open for amendment at this stage. Cabinet would take on board the responses of the public budget consultation, along with comments from Scrutiny prior to presenting the final version of the Medium Term Financial Strategy to Council on 28 February 2018.

The Leader stated that he was encouraged that Members had already began to consider the process of the Medium Term Financial Strategy via the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP). He looked forward to their input and the contribution of all Members via the BREP, the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the workshops organised. He added that whilst the majority of savings made so far and proposed, were due to improved efficiency, reduced administrative costs and greater collaboration. Some savings had been made and will have to be made by reducing or cutting frontline services to balance the Budget.

RESOLVED:That Cabinet submitted for consultation the 2018-19 Annual<br/>Budget and development of the MTFS 2018-19 to 2021-22, as<br/>set out in this report.

## 109. <u>AMENDMENT TO THE FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES (FPRS) WITHIN THE</u> COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION

The Head of Finance and S151 Officer submitted a report that sought agreement from Cabinet to present a report to Council for approval on the proposed amendments to the Constitution which reflect changes to the Financial Procedure Rules.

He confirmed that the management of the Council's financial affairs are conducted in accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of the Constitution.

He referred Members to Appendices A and B to the report, outlining the existing Financial Procedure Rules with tracked changes showing the proposed changes in Appendix A, and a clean version of the revised Financial Procedure Rules for approval at Appendix B.

The report highlighted that these would need further revision in the forthcoming year to reflect legislative changes when the Data Protection Act is replaced by the Data Protection Bill.

A Member referred to paragraph 3.1.2 (c) of the FPRs and asked why a forward indication of the MTFS comprising the revenue budget for the first year and indicative budgets for the subsequent two years had been changed to three years.

The Head of Finance and S151 Officer advised that this had been altered in line with the MTFS which had within the last few years, covered an extended period to that of previously.

She asked further questions with regard to why paragraph 3.3.3 in respect of supplementary estimates had been deleted and replaced by an alternative paragraph, to which the Head of Finance and S151 Officer confirmed he would obtain this information and give a response to her outside of the meeting.

The Member also noted that in this section of the FPRs (i.e. 3.3.5) reference was being made to over-spending against budget, however, no similar reference was made to any under-spending.

The Head of Finance and S151 Officer confirmed that this was due to the fact that when earmarked reserve requests were submitted for the future at Year end, these were considered, and where appropriate processed in accordance with their corporate risk factor, in order to protect the financial position of the Authority. This approach under the Council's Contract Procedure Rules meant that he was adopting the correct behaviour in respect of the Budget, whilst also adopting a "One Council" approach.

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That Cabinet recommended to Council the amendments to the Financial Procedure Rules contained within the report

## 110. EXTENSION OF THE SUPPLY OF FRESH, FROZEN AND COOKED MEATS CONTRACT

The Interim Corporate Director Education and Family Support presented a report, the purpose of which, was to suspend those parts of the Council's Contract procedure Rules (CPR's) in respect of the procurement requirements relating to the tendering of the supply of the above, and also to authorise the Interim Corporate Director Education and Family Support to enter into a contract with the current contractor Mid Glamorgan Provisions Ltd for an additional three month period.

He advised Cabinet that the current call off contract from the WPC Framework with Mid Glamorgan Provisions Ltd was due to expire on 31 December 2017, and at this time it had been decided that to exchange Contractors was high risk, whilst conversely, it was considered low risk to maintain the current Contractor.

With regard to the reports financial implications, the estimated value of the Contract is £115k and there was a minimal cost differential associated with the extension of the Contract compared to the cost of the new provider. The Contract costs would be met within existing budgets he concluded.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

(1) Suspended those parts of the Council's Contract Procedure Rules in respect of the procurement requirements relating to the tendering of this proposed Contract.

Authorised the Interim Corporate Director Education and Family Support to enter into a Contract with the current Contractor for a further 3 month period.

## 111. PROVISION FOR PUPILS WITH ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS (ALN) -ESTABLISHING A LEARNING RESOURCE CENTRE FOR PUPILS WITH AUTISTIC SPECTRUM DISORDERS AT YSGOL GYFUN GYMRAEG, LLANGYNWYD

The Interim Corporate Director Education and Family Support submitted a report, which informed Cabinet of the outcome of the consultation on proposals to establish a Learning Resource Centre (LRC) for pupils with autism spectrum disorders (ASD) at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg, Llangynwyd.

The report gave some background information, and then confirmed that consultation exercises on the proposal had been carried out between 6 September and 17 October 2017, with staff, governors, parents and pupils of the School, as well as the wider community under the School Organisation Code.

The Interim Corporate Director Education and Family Support referred Cabinet to Appendix 1 to the report, which contained the Consultation Report that also included feedback from Estyn.

He advised further that responses to the consultation exercises had also been followed up and acted upon, where necessary.

The next stage of the process he added, and on the basis of Cabinet approval of this report, was to publish a statutory notice outlining the proposals which would need to be published for a period of 28 days, during which, any formal written objections would be invited during this period.

The Interim Corporate Director Education and Family Support then concluded his submission by advising of the report's financial implications as was detailed in paragraph 7 of the report.

A Member was pleased to see issues developing in the area of ALN, including in Welsh Medium Schools.

A Member also welcomed positive feedback from Estyn as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, and he wished to clarify that the monies committed to establishing this Learning Resource Centre, was over and above that which had been committed to schools under the MTFS.

The Leader concluded debate on this item, by stating that he was encouraged also with the fact that there was further support being given in terms of those with ALN in classes that accommodated mainstream pupils.

RESOLVED:

That Cabinet:

- Noted the outcome of the consultation with interested parties as detailed in the Consultation Report attached at Appendix 1 to the covering report.
- (2) Approved the Consultation Report for publication.

Authorised the publication of a Statutory Public Notice on the proposal.

## 112. NANTYMOEL COMMUNITY FACILITIES

The Corporate Director Communities presented a report, in order to seek Cabinet approval of the submitted business plan from a representative Community Group in Nantymoel, to allow the existing Nantymoel Boys and Girls Club to be extended. This would ensure that additional community use can be accommodated in that facility and that the capital funding of £200k can be released for this purpose.

The background of the report referred to the former Berwyn Centre facility and that when this had closed due to a state of disrepair, and that a sum of £200k had been set aside to invest in the provision of replacement community facilities in Nantymoel.

Though there had been a delay in spending this funding, due to the fact that there had been difficulty in the local community reaching a consensus as to what facility they feel would be an appropriate alternative (to the Berwyn Centre), the Corporate Director Communities confirmed that this had now been resolved.

Additionally, he confirmed that the Council had been investigating with the Charity Commission, the feasibility and the necessary process to follow, in order to also release a sum of approximately £49k held in trust by the elected Members of the Council as Trustees, on behalf of the community of Nantymoel, for this same purpose.

Paragraph(s) 4. of the report then outlined the current situation and that which was proposed, and that the Local Community Group which had now evolved into a charitable incorporated organisation, recognised as the Nantymoel Boys and Girls Club and Community Centre with equal trustee representation from other partners detailed in paragraph 4.2 of the report, had with the support of others, developed their own Business Plan. This had been based on a preferred option of extending the existing Nantymoel Boys and Girls Club which is within the immediate vicinity of the former Berwyn Centre site. The Business Plan was shown at Appendix 1 to the report.

The Corporate Director Communities then referred to paragraph 4.5 of the report, and that the sum of £49k was intended to support the local community, as this had accrued from the original development of the Berwyn Centre. The Community Group had also requested that the Council follow the necessary process in order to release this sum of money and the area of land covering the footprint of the previous Berwyn Centre.

A Member stated that she hoped that the funding in respect of the trust would still be committed to the project, even though this was being transferred from the previous trustee, Nantymoel Workmen's Institute to the new incorporated charity, and wished that this be reflected in the Cabinet decision.

### RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

 Approved the submitted business plan proposing an extension to the existing Nantymoel Boys and Girls Club and thereby agreed to commit the capital allocation of £200,000 towards the proposed development under terms to be agreed and set out by the Council's Section 151 Officer, and that a further extension for the expenditure of the capital sum be agreed, initially to 31st March 2019.

- (2) That Cabinet noted that officers will request that the Wales Co-operative Centre continues to support the Community Group, assisted where necessary by the Council's Rural Development team, to bring forward the proposed development, and work with local stakeholders to secure further external funding, in line with the submitted funding plan.
- (3) That Cabinet also noted that it will be necessary to submit a report to all of the Council's elected Members, acting as Trustees of the Charity Nantymoel Workmen's Institute, to seek release of monies and land held in trust, to a new charity set up for the purpose of developing additional facilities for the local community of Nantymoel, namely Nantymoel Boys and Girls Club and Community Centre, and that it will also potentially be necessary to hold a public meeting for this purpose to gain the explicit support of local people as set out in the Nantymoel Workmen's Institute Charity Commission scheme.

That it be further noted that the release of money for the land held in Trust be applied Cy Pres to the new charitable trust.

# 113. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services presented a report, in order to seek Cabinet approval for items to be included on the Forward Work Programme (FWP) for the period 1 January – 30 April 2018.

He advised that the Council's Constitution explains that the FWP will be prepared to cover a period of 4 months.

Paragraph 3.2 of the report, then advised that the FWP would contain matters which the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Council are likely to consider, and gave examples of these category of items.

Attached at Appendix 1 to the report were the current Cabinet and Council FWP, whilst Appendix 2 detailed the Overview and Scrutiny FWP.

The Leader advised that the Cabinet meet with the Chairpersons of each of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees on a regular basis, in order to ensure that the Cabinet and the Scrutiny FWP's were in sync with each other, in order that the Authority had a corporate approach in terms of its FWP's.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

(1) Approved the Cabinet Forward Work Programme shown at Appendix 1 to the report.

Noted the Council and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme, as shown at Appendix 1 and 2 of the report, respectively.

## 114. <u>REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES & JOINT COMMITTEES</u>

The Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services submitted a report, the purpose of which, was to nominate one member representative to serve on the Margam Crematorium Joint Committee.

The report confirmed that the Authority is represented on a number of different Outside Bodies and Joint Committees by elected Members, and that a vacancy had recently arisen on the Margam Crematorium Joint Committee due to the need to replace a previous Member, namely Councillor M Kearn.

The Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services, confirmed that any appointment on to a body such as this, would be for a term of one year, except where earlier revocation of appointment is appropriate.

He added that all appointments were made with the assumption that appointees represent BCBC. Should any appointee cease to be a BCB Councillor, they would cease to represent the Authority and therefore would be expected to relinquish their appointment as necessary.

Paragraph 4.3 of the report confirmed that it was proposed that Councillor S Smith replace the above named Member on this body.

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That Cabinet nominated Councillor S Smith as one of the Authority's elected Member representatives on the Margam Crematorium Joint Committee.

## 115. SOCIAL HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY (SHAP) - AMENDMENT

The Partnership and Integration Manager Housing presented a report that was looking to seek Cabinet approval in respect of proposed changes to the Social Housing Allocation Policy (SHAP) attached at Appendix 1 to the report.

She advised that there was a statutory requirement for every housing authority to have a Housing Allocation Scheme for determining priorities and a procedure to be followed in allocating housing accommodation. The current SHAP was approved by Cabinet in late 2014.

The Partnership and Integration Manager Housing advised that there were 4 RSL's in Bridgend who were party to the SHAP and the Common Housing Register, and these were V2C, Linc Cymru, Hafod and Wales and the West Housing Association.

She referred Cabinet to paragraphs 4. of the report, and the fact that the local authority and its partner RSL's, had recently re-evaluated the effectiveness of the SHAP, and had considered additional procedures to take account of, and formalise, requirements of the Housing Act 1996 and the Code of Guidance for Local Authorities on Allocation of Accommodation and Homelessness 2015.

The reasons for making changes to the SHAP were itemised in this section of the report, and the Partnership and Integration Manager outlined each of these for the benefit of Members.

She then confirmed that the four RSL's in Bridgend had been consulted, and had approved the recommended amendments proposed for the SHAP.

As a Board Member of V2C a Member welcomed the introduction of a 3<sup>rd</sup> Band, and felt that this would lead to improved joint working between the Council and its RSL partners, as well as giving more flexibility to tenants who are seeking a certain type of housing accommodation, i.e. appropriate in size to cater for their specific needs.

Another Member noted the high demand for 1 bed and single occupancy accommodation and hoped that this would continue to be addressed. He added also of the need to tackle with RSL partners, the need to ensure empty homes are wherever possible occupied.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet approved the amended Social Housing Allocation Policy (SHAP) attached as Appendix 1 to the report, in particular the creation of a new Band C for rehousing applicants assessed as having no housing need:

• Who are willing to reside in an area of low demand, or Who meet the requirements of a Local Lettings Policy

## 116. THE CORPORATE REPORT TEMPLATE

The Monitoring Officer presented a report in order to request approval of the revised corporate template for reports that are presented to Council, Cabinet and their Committees.

The report proposed, that the report template be updated to reflect the implementation of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (WFGA), and to include a standardisation of the Corporate Priorities.

The Monitoring Officer advised that the WFGA Assessment template was attached at Appendix 1 to the report, and would be made available on the Intranet for report authors to access. An example of a completed assessment was also shown at Appendix 2 to the report, to show the level of detail that may be required.

He advised that there would be some training put in place for the above, in order that Officers could be explained of the requirement to consider the implications of this latest legislation in terms of decision making.

A Member referred to page 257 in Appendix 1, and asked if reference to the word 'Sex' under the sub-heading Protected characteristics could be changed to read "Gender." It was agreed that this amendment would be made.

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That Cabinet approved the use of the revised Corporate Report Template for all reports being presented to Committees from 1 April 2018, following the completion of appropriate training for report authors and awareness sessions for elected Members.

## 117. <u>AUTHORISATION FOR A WAIVER, UNDER RULE 3.2.3 OF THE CONTRACT</u> <u>PROCEDURE RULES (CPRS) - MODERN.GOV COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION</u> <u>SYSTEM</u>

The Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services presented a report, seeking authorisation for a waiver, under Rule 3.2.3 of the Contract procedure Rules (CPRs), from obtaining tenders for the provision of a Committee Administration System.

Following some background information, the report confirmed that Modern.Gov was presently operational in 20 Welsh Authorities, and presently provides the committee administration service to 306 authorities, with 270 of these being in UK/Ireland.

The report then outlined the benefits that the system had introduced, upon which the Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services expanded upon, for the benefit of Cabinet.

Paragraph 7of the report then outlined the costs for the system for the next 3 years following 2017.

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That Cabinet approved a waiver from the requirement to tender to procure a Committee Administration System from Modern.Gov, in accordance with Rule 3.2.3 of the Contract Procedure Rules.

## 118. INFORMATION REPORTS FOR NOTING

The Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services presented a report that informed Cabinet of the Information Reports for noting published since its last scheduled meeting, as contained in paragraph 4.1 of the report.

A Member welcomed the report in respect of the Smart System and Heat Programme, and felt that this was an excellent initiative. He advised those present, that BCBC were only one of three Authorities in the UK that were providing heat in this very innovative way. He wished to place on record his thanks to Officers for securing this grant offer of  $\pounds$ 6,498,943.

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That Cabinet acknowledged the publication of the two documents contained in the covering report.

119. URGENT ITEMS

None.

## 120. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED:That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972<br/>as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)<br/>(Variation) (Wales) Order 2007, the public be excluded from the<br/>meeting during consideration of the following item of business as<br/>it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part<br/>4 and Paragraph 21 of Part 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local<br/>Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government<br/>(Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Following the application of the public interest test in consideration of this item, it was resolved that pursuant to the Act referred to above, to consider the item in private, with the public being excluded from the meeting as it would involve the disclosure of exempt information of the nature as stated above.

## 121. <u>APPROVAL OF EXEMPT MINUTES</u>

<u>RESOLVED:</u> That the exempt Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet dated 31 October 2017, be approved as a true and accurate record.

The meeting closed at 4.08 pm